ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 4, 2015
1:05 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Bob Lynn

Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse MIlett

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

ALASKA PUBLI C OFFI CES COW SSI ON

W LLI AM McCORD
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 83

"An  Act relating to collecting information about civil
litigation by the Alaska Judicial Council; repealing Rule
41(a)(3), Alaska Rules of Cvil Procedure, and Rules 511(c) and
(e), Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 83(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 65
"An Act relating to the disclosure of financial information by
persons who are subject to the Legislative Ethics Act and by
certain public officers, public enployees, and candidates for
public office."

- MOVED CSHB 65(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 4, 2015



BILL: HB 83
SHORT TITLE: JUDICIAL COUNCIL: CIVIL LI TI GATI ON | NFO
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

01/ 28/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 15 (H) JUD

02/ 06/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 06/ 15 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>
02/ 13/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 13/ 15 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>
02/ 20/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 20/ 15 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 20/ 15 (H M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 02/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
03/ 02/ 15 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>
03/ 04/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 65
SHORT TITLE: LEG /PUB. OFFI Cl AL FI NANCI AL DI SCLOSURE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (H STA, JUD

01/ 27/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

01/ 27/ 15 (H Heard & Held

01/ 27/ 15 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 03/ 15 (H) <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 10/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 10/ 15 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed to 2/12/15>

02/ 12/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 12/ 15 (H Moved CSHB 65(STA) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 12/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 13/ 15 (H STA RPT CS(STA) 6DP

02/ 13/ 15 (H DP: TALERI CO, STUTES, KELLER,
GRUENBERG, KREI SS- TOWKI NS, LYNN

03/ 04/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

W LLI AM LEE MCCORD, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

Hai nes, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As appointee to the position of the Al aska
Public Ofices Comm ssion, discussed his qualifications and
answer ed questi ons.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 4, 2015



CLARK BI CKFORD, St af f

Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a brief overview of CSHB 83, on
behal f of prime sponsor Representative LeDoux.

SUZANNE DI PETRO, Executive Director

Al aska Judi ci al Counci

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 83, answered
gquesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prinme sponsor of CSHB 65.

JULI E LUCKY, Staff

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding CSHB 65, as
staff to the prine sponsor, Representative M ke Hawker.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI' S, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the Al aska
Public O fices Conm ssion anmendnents to CSHB 65.

KATHY WASSERMAN

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified regarding nunicipalities and CSHB
65.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:05: 07 PM
CHAIR GABRIELLE LEDOUX called the House Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representatives Lynn,
Cl aman, Foster, Keller, and LeDoux were present at the call to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2015



order. Representative Guenberg arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :
ALASKA PUBLI C OFFI CES COWM SSI ON

1: 05: 46 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX brought before the conmttee the appointnent of
Wlliam MCord to the position of the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC). [Packet contains biographical information on
t he appoi nt ee. ]

CHAIR LEDOUX advised the commttee it would be hearing the
gualification of this individual today and reconmending that his
nane be referred to the Joint House and Senate for
consideration. Chair LeDoux rem nded the commttee that its job
is only to review the history and qualifications of this man.
She stated there will be no vote for or against his confirmation
in this commttee. She highlighted that conmttee nenbers
should feel free to ask questions as they arrive, but to bear in
mnd that the conmmttee is not voting on his qualifications,
nerely review ng them

1: 06: 51 PM

WLLIAM LEE MCCORD said he recently noved to Haines and is
assum ng everyone has the sunmary of his past experience. He
said he would |i ke to open the discussion to questions.

CHAIR LEDOUX asked if there is anything he would like to
hi ghl i ght about his qualifications.

1: 07: 43 PM

MR. McCORD said he has a varied background with broad ranges of
experi ence. Therefore, he renmarked, it helps him relate to
people, and to process quite readily, due to his experience.
Also, he stated, partially due to his formal training he has
skills in being an objective observer and analyst in how to
determ ne that fairness is injected into any process.

1: 08: 41 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER referred to M. MCord' s application

regarding conflict of interest, wherein he had answered "Yes,"
to the question "Wuld you or your famly be affected

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2015



financially by decisions to be nade by the comm ssion for which
you are applying."” Representative Keller asked that he explain
hi s answer.

VR. McCORD sai d, with regard to the particular phrase
Representative Keller referred to, M. MCord has a "No," typed
on his copy of his application and related that possibly the
conmttee received a different printout.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER renarked "that answers the question.”

1:09: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if he or his famly could be
affected financially by decisions made by the conm ssion and
further asked that M. MCord explain the potential benefit, [if
his answer is "yes."]

MR. McCORD stated that response is very different fromhis copy.

CHAIR LEDOUX explained that the committee's copy read [as
Representative Keller stated].

1:11: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN questioned whether there is anything about
serving on the APOC that wll cause financial hardship or
difficulty on himor his famly in any manner, other than tine
spent going to neetings.

MR. McCORD responded "There will be no hardship.”

1:12:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN then questioned whether there would be
financial consequences from serving on the conmm ssion.

1:12: 31 PM
MR. McCORD responded "I do not anticipate any."
1:12: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether M. MCord saw potentia
benefit of a non-financial manner, political, or otherw se.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2015



MR MCORD said that he is so new to Alaska it would be

difficult for him to envision anything in that manner. He
remarked that nost Libertarians do not have an advantage of
anyt hi ng. "Seriously,"” he related, he does not anticipate any

particular advantage, and he is not participating in any
canpaigns or any effort to reap the benefits of sonething |ike
this. He further related that this is five year comm tnent and
he takes it quite seriously.

1:14:15 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked how long M. MCord has lived in Al aska.

MR. McCORD responded "since May of this year," and said he is a
year -round resident.

1:14: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that M. MCord spent a lot of tine in
Hei del berg Germany and asked how he happened to be in Gernmany.

MR. McCORD advised he was a mlitary dependent.
1:16: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what typically would conme before the
APCC for review,

MR MCORD testified that a conplaint mght be filed about
m sconduct .

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN further asked what type of conplaints m ght
sonmeone in the public file.

MR. MCORD responded that failure to report would be one
exanple, or failure to neet the deadline for reporting,
m sreporting - which would be researched by the staff and they
woul d docunent dates, tinmes and amounts involved in terns of
penal ties.

1:17:31 PM
CHAIR LEDOUX quiered as a nenber of the Libertarian party,

whet her he believes the functions of the APOC are an appropriate
governnmental function

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2015



MR. MCORD answered that he uses an analogy in that when an
individual is swwnmng in a stream the individual swins in the
best and nost fluid manner to swm He further answered there
are certain things people have to deal wth, such as two-way
streets in that he drives on the right side of the street I|ike
everyone el se. He described the APOC as an agency that is a
necessary part of our living and working together in a political
environment, and he accepts it as a Libertarian in spite of sone
of the phil osophies people may have heard.

1:19: 04 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX said that under the APOC rules, which are nade by
the legislature and the APOC enforces, people are only allowed
to donate $500 maxi mum per candi date. In the event someone has
donated nore, it is an APOC viol ation. She asked whether that
is sonething appropriate for the governnment to have | egi sl ated.
She further asked that if he does not think it is appropriate,
could he still enforce it.

MR. McCORD responded that as a nenber of the conmission it would
not be his decision to nmake, as it is for the legislature to
make. He described his job on the APOC as to decide with the
ot her nenbers, as a collective body, whether or not there is an
actual violation, and whether the penalty is fair wunder the
rul es. He said he is not to judge whether or not the rule is
acceptable as that is for the |egislature.

1:20: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN questioned M. MCord's notivation for
applying for the position on the APCC

MR. McCORD said he has a long history of public service and this
unexpected opportunity "shows up" for a "Libertarian only" to be
on the [comm ssion]. He related that his contacts told him he
should submit his nanme, so he did as this would be a good way
for him to be imediately involved in what is happening in
Al aska.

1:21:18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that when a nenber renders a decision
against a person to whom a conplaint has been filed it is

supposed to be a non-partisan deci sion. He opined that it does
not matter which party the person is a nenber, it matters only

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2015



what the person may, or may not have done. Partisanship nust be
kept out of it, he rel ated.

MR. McCORD answered "Precisely.”
1:21:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG qui ered whether he initially applied to
APCC or just for the Professional Teaching Practices Conmm ssion
(PTPO) .

MR. McCORD said he applied for both.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG further quiered what conpelled him to
apply for the APOC

MR. McCORD responded that the State of Washington has an al nost
identical history in terns of public disclosure. He opined that
based on his experience, he felt he could do a good job on the
APCC, in as nuch as he is somewhat famliar wth the disclosure
requi renents i n Washi ngt on.

1:23: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to M. MCord s application
and his community service and stated [his application] does not
relate to anything like the APCC He asked if he had any
experience in anything political or simlar to the APCC

MR. McCORD remarked that he had not as an appointee, but he has

experience regarding the consideration of issues. He asked if
Representative Guenberg was asking him whether he was ever
involved in anything that required enforcenent. M. MCord

asked if he was restating that correctly.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied "Pl ease continue. "

MR. McCORD responded that he has not been directly involved in
any enforcenent type of role.

1:24: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned if he had ever run for
office, or been involved in a canpaign, or had any dealing with
t he equi val ent agency in Washi ngton, or el sewhere.

MR. McCORD advi sed he ran for office in the State of Wshi ngton.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2015



1:24: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for the details of his canpaign.

MR. McCORD stated he has gone through the petitioning process in
order to run for office, the filing fee process, the public
announcenent at the convention, and reporting of canpaign
contri butions.

1: 25: 20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked which office he ran for.

MR. McCORD related that he ran for Congress and subsequently for
the state | egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether he had any dealings with
the equivalent agency in Wshington in the capacity of a
w tness, or lodging a conplaint, or a conplaint |odged against
hi m

1: 26: 06 PM
MR. McCORD replied "No, | have not."
1:26: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that M. MCord arrived in Al aska
in May of 2014, and asked how long after that did he submt his
appl i cati on.

VR. McCORD responded that he submitted his application
el ectronically on 12/29/14.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG qui ered if sonmeone asked him to submt
his application to the APCC

MR. McCORD replied that it was suggested by the existing party
nmenbers as it becane clear from the election how things were
going to stack up in ternms of openings on the APCC. He noted
that the two parties with the nost votes would be eligible.

1:27:44 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to his resune that indicates he
was appointed to two Washington conm ssions by Governor Dan
Evens, in 1970 and asked the nane of the two conm ssions.

MR. McCORD answered that one conm ssion selected and intervi ewed
candidates for the Departnent of Ecol ogy. The second
conmmi ssi on, Speci al Levy St udy Comm ssi on, deal t W th
determ ning nethods to finance the public school system

1:28:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether during either of the
commi ssions he was a nenber of the Libertarian Party.

MR MCORD noted that at that tine there was no Libertarian
Party as it was initially started in 1971, and wasn't on the
ball ot until 1972.

1:29: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN assuned M. MCord becane a nenber of the
Li bertarian party after it becane an official party in
Washi ngt on.

MR. McCORD answered in the affirmative.

1:29:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN ask for «clarification regarding his
service on the REI Board, and further asked if it is the conpany
that sells outdoor gear.

MR. McCORD said "I'mglad you recognized it."

1:29:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN quiered whether his Libertarian views
interfered with his ability to function effectively on that

boar d.

VR. McCORD asked  what Representative O anan meant by
"interfered."

1: 30: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER objected as a point of order that it is
not an appropriate question and if the person had identified

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 4, 2015



another party it would be sanme response from Representative
Kel | er.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN responded that Representative Keller's
objection is well considered. He advised he was follow ng up on
the prior questions of Chair LeDoux with regard to whether
Li bertari ans suggest that government has no role, and whether he
agrees or disagrees with that perspective.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the point is well taken.
1:31: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that M. MCord worked as a
fisheries observer in Alaska and surmised that job required M.
McCord to assess whether soneone is followng the |aw He
qui ered whether he could perform his duties consistent with what
t he | aw required.

MR. McCORD responded in the affirmative and said he served under
the National Marines Fisheries Service and technically was an
observer on a foreign fishing vessel by treaty arrangenent. He
expl ained that under the treaty arrangenent, the observer is
simlar to a junior officer and reported the catch on a weekly
basis. The observer was given different codes in order to stand
back in case there was sone aberration in the catch. The U. S
Coast CGuard and National Marine Fisheries Service mght then
arrange sone type of boarding for an inspection, if necessary,
he rel at ed.

1: 32: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what brought M. MCord to Al aska from
State of Washi ngt on.

MR. MCORD responded he wanted to l|ive here for personal
reasons.

CHAI R LEDOUX closed public testinony after ascertaining no one
further wished to testify.

1: 33: 35 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to forward the nane of WIIliam Lee

McCord to the joint session of the House and Senate for
confirmation.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed for di scussion.

1:34:10 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX advi sed Representative Guenberg that this is not a
vote on whether the commttee thinks he is qualified or think he
is not qualified. She expressed there are no grounds for
di scussi on as everyone has their own view.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he did not know where
there was an allowable objection and if so, what the allowable
grounds would be because he has never been in the situation
where a nenber has obj ect ed.

CHAI R LEDOUX stated "Let's not nmeke this the first tine."
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

[ There being no further objection, the confirmation was
advanced. |

1: 35: 09 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from1:35 p.m to 1:37 p.m
CHAI R LEDOQUX passed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.

1: 37: 44 PM

HB 83-JUDI Cl AL COUNCIL: CIVIL LITIGATI ON | NFO

1: 37: 49 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER announced that the next order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 83, "An Act relating to collecting

information about «civil litigation by the Alaska Judicia
Counci | ; repealing Rule 41(a)(3), Alaska Rules of Givil
Procedure, and Rules 511(c) and (e), Al aska Rules of Appellate
Procedure; and providing for an effective date.™ [Before the

committee was CSHB 83 (JUD), adopted 2/20/2015.]
1:38: 17 PM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER advi sed that public testinony is closed and it
wi Il not be reopened unless there is a request to testify.

1: 38: 56 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2015



The conmttee took a brief at ease.
1: 39:32 PM

CLARK BI CKFORD, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Al aska
State Legislature, said CSHB 83 would repeal a 1997 |aw that
requires «civil litigation reports to the Alaska Judicial
Council. He reiterated fromhis previous testinony that the |aw
has been wi dely ignored, ineffective, and not supported by the
| egal community. He referred to the last hearing wherein there
was a question regardi ng what woul d happen to the funds given to
the Alaska Judicial Council for [reviewing the data] and
preparing reports, and advised that Susanne Dipietro is on line
to address that question.

1: 40: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opened public testinony.
1:41: 11 PM

SUZANNE DI PETRO, Executive Director, Alaska Judicial Council,
Al aska Court System stated that her research indicates there
was an anmount of noney put in the Al aska Judicial Council's base
budget, when the |law was passed in 1997 or 1998, to provide the
resources in order to performthe work. She explained the funds
are available to be returned if the Al aska Judicial Council is
no longer required to do the work.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER advised that it is out of the purview of
the bill, and he is sure the information will go forward to the
House Finance Committee.

1:42:18 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX quiered that the nobney was put into the Al aska
Judicial Council budget in 1997, or 1998, and one report has
been prepared.

M5. DI Pl ETRO advi sed three reports have been prepar ed.

1:42:41 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX surmsed it has not been a yearly report, and

guestioned how much nmoney is left since the yearly reports have
not been prepared.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 4, 2015



M5. DI PIETRO explained that although reports have not been
prepared because the data has been ..

CHAIR LEDOQUX interjected that she is not blamng Ms. Dipietro
for not doing the reports, she was just curious how nmuch noney
is left.

M5. DI PIETRO depicted that the work is still being perforned in
the sense of collecting the data, of which they receive a couple
of forns from attorneys each day, determne if the information
is correct, enter the information into the data base, and
mai ntain the data base. The Al aska Judicial Council has daily
activities in order to fulfill the requirenents of the statute
that do not involve report witing.

1:43:52 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked how much noney was put into the base.

M5. DIPIETRO in describing her records as spotty, said the
amount was $19, 200 a year.

CHAI R LEDOUX deduced that putting the sporadic data that the
Al aska Judicial Council has received, which appears to be
relatively mnimal, into the data base at a cost of alnost
$20, 000 a year.

M5. DI PIETRO stipulated that the work was not erratic, as the
data is regular, and involves followng up when information is
i nconpl ete or appears inaccurate wth telephone calls, enmuils,

and letters to attorneys. She highlighted that the Al aska
Judi cial Council is using that noney to performthe work.
1:44:51 PM

VICE CHAIR KELLER reiterated that the issue nmay be out of the
purvi ew of the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee.

1:45: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report the proposed CS for HB
83, Version 29-LS0410\H, Wllace, 2/5/15, from comrittee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection CSHB 83(JUD) was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2015



1:45:52 PM

The conmmittee took an at-ease from1:45:52 to 1:48:02 p. m

VI CE CHAIR KELLER returned the gavel to Chair LeDoux.

HB 65-LEG /PUB. OFFI Cl AL FI NANCI AL DI SCLOSURE

1: 48: 02 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 65, "An Act relating to the disclosure of

financial information by persons who are subject to the
Legislative Ethics Act and by certain public officers, public
enpl oyees, and candidates for public office.” [Before the

comittee was CSHB 65( STA). ]
1:48: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as prime sponsor said that originally the bill was intended to
change the [deadline] of the public official fi nanci al
di scl osures (POFD) which are required to be filed. He explained
all public officials, whether in the state |egislature, or | ocal

gover nnment s, or boards and conm ssions, must file full
di sclosures of their financial transactions of the previous
year. He extended that the bill takes no issue with the
substance of those filings, but rather that, under statute, the
di scl osures are due on March 15. Oiiginally, the bill noved the
date back to after the date of an individual's federal incone
tax filing requirenent. He opined that this would allow

individuals wth conmplex financial situations to file an
accurate and conprehensive report within the sane tine frane as
they are required by federal statute to have their incone tax
returns conpleted, wthout an extension. He stated that the
House State Affairs Standing Committee agreed with idea but said
the April 30 date was a little quick and noved the date to My
15. He explained that the crux of the bill would change the
annual filing dates for legislative financial disclosures and
public official's financial disclosure statenents from March 15
to May 15, of each year.

1: 50: 44 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted further changes in the bill wth
regard to pr of essi onal s, such as att or neys, doctors,
accountants, engineers, architects, or independent nurses with a
mul titude of clients and are required to disclose all of their
clients and revenues. He further noted that attorneys can claim
attorney-client privilege, and there are accountants who wll
not allow individuals to disclose their client base, and the

amount they are being paid. Therefore, through regulatory
activity the APOC has allowed them to not disclose those
clients, he said. Statutorily, he stated that the |anguage in
the bill mkes it very clear that a public official public

di sclosure filer could be exenpted from disclosing information
if that information is either confidential by law or would
adversely affect the individual's ability to conduct business.
The bill then sets up the standard to weigh the potential harm
to the person conparing it to the public's interest in obtaining
that information, he rel ated.

1:52:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER conti nued that two provisions were brought
forward by the APOC itself, which includes various reporting
requirenents as it relates to different individuals residing in
different communities of different size. He said the sponsor
has no opinion on the APCC request.

1: 52: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN concluded that the APOC recomended an
increase in population from5,000 to 15,000, and it appears that
t he sponsor is neutral.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER st ated he has no opi nion on that subject.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER responded to Representative Claman that in
the interest of accompbdating the concerns of the APOC, the
sponsor does not object to include its request in this bill
knowing it would go through the legislative process and on
various committees wth the opportunity to discuss it with the
APCC.

1:53: 33 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CLAVMAN referred to the waiver of disclosing
clients is one that professionals, such as, |awers, doctors,

nurses woul d have to nmake a special request for the waiver as it
woul d not automatically apply.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 4, 2015



JULIE LUCKY, Staff, Representative Mke Hawker, Alaska State
Legi slature, responded to Representative Claman that there is
currently a waiver process where the person does put forth a
letter to the APOC and the person is granted a waiver from
di scl osure. She opined that the reporting reads, instead of
nam ng address of client it will now say "protected by H PPA, or
attorney-client privilege, or sone notation" regarding the
information is not being disclosed.

1:55: 04 PM

PAUL DAUPHI NAI S, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), Departnent of Admnistration, responded to

Representative Claman that the bill puts the process into
statute rather than solely in regulation and it would not change
the process of the APOC "much at all, if at all.” He noted an

earlier comment of individual granted a waiver or exenption for
reporting all of their clients, the individual can report the
aggregate anount and not refer to the clients; others report the
clients in an abbreviated nanner, and elimnate identifying
information, and list the incone.

1: 55: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if there is a formal request |awers
and doctors and wite to the APOC, or sinply make the claim on
their form

MR. DAUPHI NAI S responded that in general, individuals requesting
the exenption wite to the APOC and explain their situation, and
t he APOC goes fromthere.

CHAI R LEDOQUX opened public testinony
1:57:33 PM

KATHY WASSERMVAN, Al aska Municipal League (AM.), stated the
commttee substitute changes the population figures to now
require municipalities between the population count of 5,000 and
15,000, to file electronically. The Al aska Minicipal League
(AML) had not heard from the APCC that the change was com ng as
no one called any of the clerks involved. She said she does not
have the list of nunicipalities that have opted out, but wthout
that list it affects 12 different communities. While it may not
be a stretch to require electronic filing in the [larger
comunities, but places such as Bethel it becones nore

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2015



difficult, she noted. She related that many of the clerks do
have people filing by paper. She maintained she was told by an
i ndividual at the APCC this was requested by the clerks in order
to allow them nore time because it required [a certain anount
of] their time. She referred to AS 39.50.020(b), which read:

(b) A public official or former public official other
than an elected or appointed municipal officer shall
file the statement with the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion. Candidates for the office of governor and
i eutenant governor and, if the candidate is not
subject to AS 24.60, the legislature shall file the
statenent wunder AS 15.25.030 or 15.25.180. Mnicipa
officers, former nunicipal officers, and candidates
for elective nunicipal office, shall file with the
muni ci pal clerk or other municipal official designated
to receive their filing for office. Al statenents
required to be filed under this chapter are public
records.

M5. WASSERMAN continued her testinony and stated that this does
not save the clerks' tinme as they still nust get a paper copy on
file in their office. She opined that in the future when the
APCC desires changing rules that it talk to the clerks, or to
the nmunicipalities. She expressed that AM. is opposed to that
section of the bill and would I|ike that portion renoved,
ot herwi se AML does not have a problemw th the bill.

2:01: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether Ms. Wasserman is testifying
as a representative of the AM.

M5. WASSERMAN answered in the affirmative.

2:01: 34 PM

M5. WASSERMAN reiterated to Representative Caman that other
than the above portion, AML has no problemw th the bill at all.
She directed that she discussed the bill with the clerks who "in
theory" had requested this, and they said "they had not."

2:01: 52 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for clarification that if the
commttee does not put the anmendnent in as an option, AM. is
happy with the bill

M5. WASSERVAN stated that AML is not happy with the bill that
states comuniti es between 5,000 and 15, 000 shoul d be incl uded.

2:02: 24 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned M. Dauphinais where he received the
idea of changing the nunbers for the nunicipalities to the
15, 000 | evel .

MR. DAUPHI NAI'S responded that over the last couple of years,
both he and his staff have given a nunber of trainings and
present ati ons. He remarked were approached several tines by
cl erks requesting a manner their filers could file
el ectronically. He opined that if they have since changed their
mnd, the APOC has no problem with that portion of the bill
bei ng renoved, and he apol ogi zed to the sponsor.

2:03: 29 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX verified that he did not check with the clerks
recently.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S responded "That is correct.”
2: 03: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked that from the standpoint of the
APCC, whether the 5,000 to 15,000 has any inpact in terns of
doi ng busi ness.

MR. DAUPHI NAI'S relayed that it would not change the way the APCC
does business at all and it is conpletely cost neutral.

2:04: 09 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX quiered that as the law currently stands, an
i ndi vidual who is not required to file electronically w shes to
file electronically, whether they are precluded from filing
el ectronically.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S responded "No, they are not," as anyone can file
el ectronically.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 4, 2015



CHAIR LEDOUX said she was having a problem understandi ng why
then the clerks would have approached him to change the nunbers
if individuals were already allowed to file electronically.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS offered that the clerks told him it was quite
bot hersonme for them in that they had to maintain a stack of
forms, and give them out to the filers and later collect them
and later give them to the APOCC in sonme manner. When filers
file electronically, they are already filed with the APOC and
[print] the copy and give it to the clerk, or the clerk can
print a copy. He offered that Ms. WAsserman was correct in that
the nmunicipal clerk is the custodial of the record.

CHAI R LEDOUX expressed that her confusion is if the individuals
are able to file electronically w thout changing the rules, then
they really didn't have to keep ... she said she did not see why
it would have been burdensone to the clerks.

2:06: 17 PM

M5. WASSERMVAN responded to Representative Foster that she did
not nean to just zero in on Bethel as her records showed that 12
cormmunities were involved and related that electronic filing
will be much nore difficult in the Northwest Artic Borough or in
the North Sl ope Borough.

2:07:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, Version 29-
LSO070\ N. 1, Wayne, 3/3/15, which read:

Page 2, line 11:
Del ete "5, 000"
| nsert "15, 000"

Page 2, line 14:
Del ete "[15, 000]"

Page 5, line 10:
Del ete "5, 000"
| nsert "15, 000"

Page 5, line 13:

Delete "may [ 15,000 SHALL]"
| nsert "shall"

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN objected and stated that after listening
to the testinony he did not believe the bill should be anended
to change the nunber from 5,000 to 15,000, as the clerks
affected are content with 5, 000.

2:08: 27 PM

The conm ttee took an at-ease from 2:08:27 to 2:10:06 p. m
2:10: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked for clarification that the commttee
woul d be adopting the 15,000 nunber.

2:11: 00 PM

M5. LUCKY explained that the current statute has a threshold of
a community with a population of 15,000 wherein those nunicipa

officers currently can choose to paper file, or electronic file.
She opined that a great nunber of those people do choose to
el ectronic file, which is allowed under current law. During the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee hearing, an anendnent was
adopted to drop the threshold to 5, 000. She advised that the
sponsor has heard from AML and a few of the boroughs that they
are concerned with that change. She expl ained that Anmendnment 1
would leave the status quo in the statute. She further
expl ai ned that there would be no change to the current threshold
which is a nunicipality with a population of 15,000 or fewer

and would still have the option of either paper filing or filing
el ectronically.

2:12: 16 PM

CHAIR LEDOQUX [treating the objection as wthdrawm] said
Amendrent 1 passes.

2:12: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 65, Version 29-
LSO070\ N. 1, Wayne, 3/3/15, as anended, out of conmmttee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 65(JUD) was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:13: 12 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 4, 2015



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee nmeeting was adjourned at 2:13 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 4, 2015



